
 
 

 

 
30 November 2011  
 
 
 
Freedom of information request – RFI20111387 
 
Thank you for your request under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (“the Act”) dated 10th 
November 2011 requesting the information in table 1 below. 
 
For the purposes of this FOI request, please note: 
 

• We have taken year to mean the BBC financial year which runs from 1st April to 31st 
March. 

• The BBC’s commercial subsidiaries are not subject to the Act (see section 6(1)(b)(ii) of the 
Act) and therefore, their spend has not been included in the figures disclosed below. 

• The data provided for the 2011/12 financial year is for 1st April to 30th October 2011. 
• The data provided for 2007/08 is for the period September 2007 to March 2008, this being 

the first 7 months of the managed service contract. 
• Spend is made up of temporary staff pay and management fees. 

 
The BBC in common with other large organisations does employ agency staff, but only when we 
need resource on projects where it would not be cost efficient to maintain these specialist skills 
in-house.   
 
Response 
 
  Question Response 
Q1 Name of supplier who has been awarded a contract 

for this category. 
 Reed Personnel Ltd 

Q2 Does this contract use a framework agreement?  No, this is a managed service 
contract 

Q3 If it is a framework agreement, please name the 
organisation that placed the original tender for this 
agreement. 

  

N/A 

Q4 What is the value of payments made by your 
organisation to the contracted supplier in the 
following financial years? 

2011/12 - £14,690,792 

2010/11 - £21,381,904 



 

 

2009/10 - £26,110,786 

2008/09 - £25,947,827 

2007/08 - £12,790,738 
Q5 What was the estimated value of the contract at 

the time it was let? 
£30m per annum 

Q6 Are the spend figures above quoted inclusive or 
exclusive of VAT? 

Exclusive 

Q7 Start date of contract. 01/09/07 
Q8 End date of contract. 31/08/12 
Q9 If there is an option to extend this contract, please 

provide the end date of the contract in the event 
that you take up the extension. If there are multiple 
extensions to the contract, please provide each 
date that the contract could come to an end. 

  

E.g. For a three year contract let on 1st Jan 2009 
with two annual extensions, this would be recorded 
as: 01/01/2013 and 01/01/2014.  

 

01/09/13 

Q10 Do you have any plans to review this contract?  No 
Q11 If you are planning to review this contract, please 

provide a date when this review will take place. 
N/A 

Q12 What is the nature of staff bought through this 
contract? 

E.g. Admin, financial, legal. 

 All areas of temporary/agency staff 
with the exception of trades i.e. 
carpenters, electricians 

  

  
Q13 Are there any types of agency staff that the 

organisation utilises, but that are not sourced 
through this contract?  

 Yes, trades such carpenters and 
electricians are engaged directly by 
the relevant department  

Q14 Supply arrangements / nature of supply. 

Please describe the nature of the contract. E.g. 
master vendor (supplier organises all elements of 
supply) or vendor neutral (supplier manages 
administrative tasks but other companies are used 
to source staff). 

  

  

Contract holder provides a managed 
service and supplies the majority of 
roles themselves, sourcing staff from 
other agencies if and when necessary 



 

 

If neither of these descriptions reflect your 
contract, please describe your arrangements. 

Q15 If you use a vendor neutral arrangement, please 
detail the other agencies used in the agreement and 
the relative values of their sub-contracts. 

 This information is not held by the 
BBC as our contract holder owns 
any third party arrangements with 
agencies 

Q16 Please provide a copy of all documents relating to 
the original tender for this contract, including PQQ, 
ITT, Contract Award and the proposed contract 
terms and conditions put to suppliers during the 
tender process. 

 Attached as annexes 1 through 3 
are the PQQ and ITT documents, 
together with the proposed managed 
service terms and conditions which 
were part of the tender pack.     

 
In relation to your final question (Q16) where you request the Contract Award; please be advised 
that the BBC will not be providing you with this information as we consider it to be exempt under 
section 43(2) of the Act.  This is because disclosure would be likely to prejudice the commercial 
interests of the BBC and Reed as the information contained within this document is commercially 
sensitive.  In our opinion, disclosure would: 
 

• harm the ability of the BBC to obtain similar services in the future, which would be 
detrimental to the interests of the licence fee payer. 

• harm Reed's position in a competitive environment by revealing market-sensitive 
information on their fee level which is information of potential usefulness to competitors; 

• be likely to prejudice the commercial interests of the BBC and Reed by weakening their 
respective positions when negotiating future contracts. 

 
As section 43 is a qualified exemption, in accordance with section 2(2) of the Act, we have 
considered the public interest factors in this case.  Specifically, whether in all the circumstances of 
the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.   
 
In favour of disclosure, we recognised that there is a public interest in the following: 
 

• that there is transparency in the accountability of the BBC for public funds;  
• that the BBC is using public money effectively, and that the BBC is getting value for money 

when purchasing goods and services; and 
• that business can respond better to opportunities with the BBC. 

 
On the other hand, in considering factors that might weigh in favour of the public interest in 
withholding, we took into account: 
 

• that companies, or individuals, provide the BBC with commercially sensitive information, so 
that the BBC is able to make robust decisions regarding its suppliers of goods and services, 
including ensuring that the BBC obtains the best value for money from each transaction;  



 

 

• that the BBC maintains a strong bargaining position vis-à-vis suppliers during contractual 
negotiations in order to ensure that the licence fee is spent effectively; 

• that the competitive position of companies in their particular market is not disadvantaged 
by doing business with the BBC.  It would not be in the public interest to disclose sensitive 
information about a particular company if that information would be likely to be used by 
competitors to gain a competitive advantage.  

 
I am satisfied, in terms of section 2 of the Act, that in all the circumstances of this case; and in light 
of the information disclosed to you in to you, that the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
 
Appeal Rights 
 
If you are not satisfied with this response of information which is covered by the Act, you have the 
right to an internal review by a BBC senior manager or legal adviser.  Please contact us at the 
address above, explaining what you would like us to review and including your reference number.  
If you are not satisfied with the internal review, you can appeal to the Information Commissioner.  
The contact details are: Information Commissioner’s Office, Wycliffe House, Water Lane, 
Wilmslow, Cheshire SK9 5AF, telephone 01625 545700 or see http://www.ico.gov.uk/ 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Tracey Morris 
Head of Sourcing 
BBC Procurement 
 
 
   
 
 
 



 

 

 


